
AGENDA 
SOUTH HAVEN CHARTER TOWNSHIP 

October 8, 2025 
 

1.  Call to Order 
2.  Pledge of Allegiance 
3.  Approval of Minutes of September 10, 2025 
4.  Correspondence 
5.  Public Comments, Audience Members are allowed 3 minutes to discuss items not on 

the Agenda (5 minutes for groups) 
6.  Approval of Agenda 

 
7.  UNFINISHED BUSINESS        

A) Affordable Housing Updates  
B) Short Term Rental Updates 

a. Granicus 
b. Inspections 

C)   
 

8. NEW BUSINESS 
A) Set Public Hearing November 12, 2025 for 2026 Budget 
B) Resolution 25-26 Introducing Ord 171 Rezoning 73rd St. 
C) Resolution 25-27 Approval of Annexation of 2001 
D) Resolution 25-28 to Approve Amend Ordinance #160 Lighthouse Ridge Pilot 
E) Plowing bids 
F)  
G)  
H)  
 

9. REPORTS 
Airport 
Building/Electrical/Mechanical 
Building Committee  
Fire/Ambulance 
Library 
Park Committee  
Planning Commission 
Roads 
Senior Services 
Water/Sewer Authority 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
 

10. TREASURER’S REPORT 

11. BOARD COMMENTS  

12. ADJOURNMENT  

 



SOUTH HAVEN CHARTER TOWNSHIP 

   MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING 

WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 10, 2025 

 

Present:  Fisher, Bertorelli, Poole, Lewandowski, and Wiatrowski  

Absent:  Stein and DeGrandchamp 

Meeting was called to order by Trustee Poole at 7:30 p.m.  

Motion by Wiatrowski, supported by Lewandowski, to approve the Minutes of 

the August 13, 2025 Regular Meeting as presented.  All voted in favor.  Motion 

carried. 

Zach Kenreich from SHAES was in attendance and gave a report and Gail Gladney 

gave a report from Van Buren County. 

Motion by Wiatrowski, supported by Lewandowski, to approve the Agenda.  All 

voted in favor.  Motion carried. 

Trustee Poole reported that Tasha Smalley, the Zoning Administrator is working 

with Samaritas to bring that project forward.  Trustee Wiatrowski reported 40 STR 

inspections have been completed.  Clerk Bertorelli reported that she met with the 

attorney and they recommended the township create an Ordinance Enforcement 

Officer to assist with issues that may arise with STR and other ordinances not 

being followed. 

Motion by Wiatrowski, supported by Lewandowski, to adopt Resolution 25-21 

creating the position of Ordinance Enforcement Officer.  All voted in favor by roll 

call vote.  Motion carried. 

Motion by Bertorelli, supported by Fisher, to open the Public Hearing for the Fire 

Millage.  All voted in favor.  Motion carried. 

Trustee Poole explained the process of budgeting and how we come to the 

number of mills we recommend.  SHAES is hoping to add four new positions.  The 

recommendation is 3.63 mills to meet our obligation to the SHAES budget. 

Brian Horan, 15th Avenue, asked when the current process for adopting the fire 

millage was put in to effect.  The answer was 1975. 

He asked what the maximum ask could be.  The answer was 5 mills.   

He asked how long it would be set for.  The answer was one year. 

W.C. Askew, M43, said SHAES does an excellent job. 

Motion by Bertorelli, supported by Lewandowski, to close the Public Hearing.  All 

voted in favor.  Motion carried. 

Motion by Wiatrowski, supported by Lewandowski, to adopt Resolution 25-22, 

adding in that it was for one year.  All voted in favor by roll call vote.  Motion 

carried. 



Motion by Lewandowski, supported by Fisher, to adopt Resolution 25-23 

Introduce Ordinance 170 Amending Ordinance 160 for Lighthouse Ridge Pilot.  All 

voted in favor by roll call vote.  Motion carried. 

Motion by Bertorelli, supported by Wiatrowski, to open the Public Hearing to 

Amend the 425 Agreement at 09160 M140.  All voted in favor.  Motion carried. 

Trustee Poole explained that the owner of this property, Wayne Pecina, 

petitioned the township to have his property removed as the current agreement 

will not allow him to proceed with the development of his property as planned 

and started. 

There were no comments or questions from the board or the audience. 

Motion by Wiatrowski, supported by Lewandowski, to close the Public Hearing.  

All voted in favor.  Motion carried. 

Motion by Fisher, supported by Wiatrowski, to adopt Resolution 25-24 to Amend 

the 425 Agreement on M140.  All voted in favor by roll call vote.  Motion carried. 

Motion by Bertorelli, supported by Lewandowski, to adopt Resolution 25-25 

approving the L4029.  All voted in favor by roll call vote.  Motion carried. 

Motion by Wiatrowski, supported by Lewandowski, to renew approval for the 

PUD on Phoenix Road for the Campground being developed by Mike Hill as 

recommended by the Planning Commission.  All voted in favor.  Motion carried. 

Reports from various committees and authorities were received. W.C. Askew was 

in attendance for the Road Commission, Jean Stein reported for the Library. 

Motion by Fisher, supported by Lewandowski, to approve payment of anticipated 

bills in the amount of $45,479.43.  All voted in favor by roll call vote.  Motion 

carried. 

Meeting adjourned at 8:25 p.m. 

 

_________________________               ___________________________ 

Brenda Bertorelli, Clerk                            Phillip Poole, Trustee 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

















SOUTH HAVEN CHARTER TOWNSHIP 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 25-27 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY 

TO THE CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN 

 

 At the meeting of the Township Board of the Charter Township of South Haven, Van Buren 

County, State of Michigan, on the 10th day of October, 2025, at 7:30 p.m. 

 

PRESENT: ______________________________________________________________ 

 

ABSENT:  _______________________________________________________________ 

 

 

The following resolution was offered by ______________ and supported by _______________. 

 

WHEREAS, in 2001 the South Haven Charter Township Board received a petition (the 

“Petition”), attached as Exhibit 1, from the owners of four contiguous parcels of real property 

(the “Property”) located in the Township; and  

WHEREAS, the Petition legally described the Property to be annexed; and  

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held by the Township Board on December 12, 2001, to 

consider a request for annexation of the Property to the City of South Haven; and 

WHEREAS, following the public hearing, a motion was carried unanimously by the 

Township Board to approve the annexation request; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of South Haven approved the annexation request 

on December 17, 2001; and  

WHEREAS, the Township has searched its records and has not located a separate written 

document purporting to be a resolution approving the annexation request; and 

WHEREAS, arguably the minutes incorporating the approval constitutes a resolution of the 

Township Board approving the annexation request; and 



WHEREAS, for the avoidance of any doubt and after nearly 24 years of the Township and 

City treating the Property as having been annexed to the City, the Township desires to formally 

recognize again the annexation was approved in 2001, which is confirmed by the adoption of 

this Resolution; and  

WHEREAS, the Township finds that is in the nest interest of the Township and its residents 

to confirm the annexation of the Property.  

NOW, THEREFORE, it is resolved that: 

1. The Township Board hereby approves the annexation of the Property legally 

described as:  

Parcel 1: Commencing at a point two hundred (200) feet North of the Southeast 

corner of Section 2, Town 1 South, Range 17 West; thence North eighty (80) feet; 

thence West one hundred fifty (150) feet; thence South eighty (80) feet; thence East 

one hundred fifty (150) feet to point of beginning. 

 

Parcel 2: The West 35 feet of the East 185 feet of the South 280 feet of the Southeast 

Quarter of Section 2 Town 1 South, Range 17 West, according to the Government 

Survey thereof. 

 

Parcel 3: The East one hundred fifty (150) feet of the South two hundred (200) feet 

of Section 2, Town 1 South, Range 17 West, according to the Government Survey 

thereof. 

 

Parcel 4: The South two hundred eighty (280) feet of the West twenty (20) feet of 

the Southwest Quarter of Section 1, Town 1 South, Range 17 West, according to 

the Government Survey thereof. 

 

2. The effective date of the Property’s annexation to the City of South Haven is 

December 12, 2001. 

3. Any and all resolutions or parts of resolutions inconsistent with this Resolution are 

hereby repealed to the extent necessary to give this Resolution full force and effect.   

 

 

 



A roll call vote on the foregoing resolution was taken and was as follows: 

 

 

AYES: _____________________________________________________________ 

 

NAYS: _____________________________________________________________ 

 

 

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED 

 

 

CERTIFICATION 

 

 I, Brenda Bertorelli, South Haven Charter Township Clerk, hereby certify that the 

foregoing is a true and complete copy of the Resolution adopted by the Township Board at a 

meeting on October 10, 2025.   

 

 

       __________________________________ 

       Brenda Bertorelli 

South Haven Charter Township Clerk  

 

 

 



PETITION FOR ANNEXATION

TO THE TOWNSHIP BOARD OF SOUTH HAVEN CHARTER TOWNSHIP AND THE
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN

We the undersigned being the legal and equitable owners of that certain property
located within South Haven Charter Township and legally described on the attached
Exhibit A which is incorporated by this reference the Property petition that the

Property be annexed from the jurisdiction of South Haven Charter Township to the

jurisdiction of the City of South Haven in accordance with the provisions of Subsection
98 of Act 279 of the Public Acts of Michigan of 1909 as amended MCL 11798

We further represent

1 That there are no qualified electors residing in or on the Property and

2 That the purpose of this Petition is to allow the City of South Haven to
extend utility and other services to the Property

Therefore the undersigned urge the Township Board of South Haven Charter Township
and the City Council of the City Of South Haven to approve annexation of the Property
from the jurisdiction of South Haven Charter Township to the jurisdiction of the City of
South Haven in accordance with the provisions of Act 279 of the Public Acts of Michigan
of 1909 as amended

Dated

Randall S Locker

Dated

Dated

c 2001

2001

Caryn A Locker

Gerald A Sherman

r

Dated fr 2001
Margaret S Sherman

06909 004 145931 01



ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

STATE OF MICHIGAN

ss
COUNTY OF VAN BUREN

acknowledged his signature on this document as his free act and deed

Notary Public Van Buren County MI

My commission expires



ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

STATE OF MICHIGAN

COUNTY OF VAN BUREN

Caryn A Locker appeared before me on CO 001 and

acknowledged his signature on this document as his free act and deed

Notary Public Van Buren County MI

My commission expires



ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

STATE OF MICHIGAN

COUNTY OF VAN BUREN

Gerald A Sherman appeared before me on d7 2001 and

acknowledged his signature on this document as his free act and deed
z

Noary Public Van Buren County MI

My commission expires



ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

STATE OF MICHIGAN

COUNTY OF VAN BUREN

acknowledged his signature on this document as his fr act and deed

Nota Public Van Buren County MI

My commission expires



EXHIBIT A

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY TO BE ANNEXED

Parcel 1 Commencing at a point two hundred 200 feet North of the
Southeast corner of Section 2 Town 1 South Range 17 West thence
North eighty 80 feet thence West one hundred fifty 150 feet thence
South eighty 80 feet thence East one hundred fifty 150 feet to point of

beginning

Parcel 2 The West 35 feet of the East 185 feet of the South 280 feet of
the Southeast Quarter of Section 2 Town 1 South Range 17 West
according to the Government Survey thereof

Parcel 3 The East one hundred fifty 150 feet of the South two hundred

200 feet of Section 2 Town 1 South Range 17 West according to the
Government Survey thereof

Parcel 4 The South two hundred eighty 280 feet of the West twenty 20
feet of the Southwest Quarter of Section 1 Town 1 South Range 17

West according to the Government Survey thereof



 

 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SOUTH HAVEN 

RESOLUTION NO.  25-28 

 

RESOLUTION TO ADOPT  

AN ORDINANCE #170 TO AMEND ORDINANCE TO PROVIDE FOR  

A SERVICE CHARGE IN LIEU OF TAXES FOR DWELLING UNITS 

FOR LOW INCOME PERSONS OR FAMILIES (LIGHTHOUSE RIDGE 

APARTMENTS) 

 

At a meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Charter Township of South Haven 

("Township"), Van Buren County, Michigan, held at the Township Hall in said Township on the 

8th day of October, 2025 at 7:30 p.m. 

PRESENT:             

            

ABSENT:                   

                       

 The following Resolution was offered by ________________________________ and 

seconded by ________________________________. 

WHEREAS, South Haven Charter Township wishes to encourage developers to build 

affordable housing by accepting a service charge or payment in lieu of property taxes (a 

“PILOT”), as authorized by the State Housing Development Authority Act of 1966, 1966 PA 

356, MCL 125.1401 et seq., as amended; and 

WHEREAS, the Township adopted an Ordinance creating a PILOT for the proposed 

Lighthouse Ridge Apartments (the “Ordinance”); and 

WHEREAS, the Township desires to amend the Ordinance to remove the termination 

provision Section 9 per comments from the Michigan State Housing Development Authority; 

and 

WHEREAS, the Township introduced the Ordinance at its meeting on September 10, 

2025; and 

WHEREAS, the Township has determined that it is in the best interest of the public 

health, safety and welfare to adopt the Ordinance. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Township Board of the Charter Township of South Haven, 

resolves as follows: 

1. Ordinance No. 170, An Ordinance to Amend Ordinance to Provide For A Service 

Charge In Lieu of Taxes for Dwelling Units for Low Income Persons and Families (Lighthouse 

Ridge Apartments), attached as Exhibit A, is hereby adopted.   



 

 

2. The Ordinance shall be filed with the Township Clerk. 

3. The Township Clerk shall publish a summary of the Ordinance in a newspaper of 

general circulation in the Township and post the Ordinance in the Township Clerk’s office in 

substantially the same form as Exhibit B. 

4. A copy of the Ordinance shall be available for examination at the office of the 

Township Clerk and copies may be provided for a reasonable charge.   

5. Any and all resolutions that are in conflict with this Resolution are hereby 

repealed to the extent necessary to give this Resolution full force and effect. 

 

YEAS:  ____________________________ 

NAYS:  ____________________________  

 

 

THE RESOLUTION WAS DECLARED ADOPTED. 

 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 

    ) ss.  

COUNTY OF VAN BUREN ) 

 

  

I, Brenda Bertorelli, Township Clerk of the Charter Township of South Haven, hereby certify 

this to be a true and complete copy of Resolution No. 25-28, duly adopted at a meeting of the 

Township Board held on the 8th day of October, 2025 at 7:30 p.m. 

 

 

              

       Brenda Bertorelli, Township Clerk 

 



EXHIBIT B 

 

EXHIBIT A  

 

SOUTH HAVEN TOWNSHIP 

ORDINANCE NO. 170 

 

ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE TO PROVIDE FOR A SERVICE CHARGE IN 

LIEU OF TAXES FOR DWELLING UNITS FOR LOW INCOME PERSONS AND 

FAMILIES 

(LIGHTHOUSE RIDGE APARTMENTS)  

 

THE TOWNSHIP OF SOUTH HAVEN ORDAINS: 

  

 Section 1. Removal Of Section 9. 

 

 Section 9 of Ordinance to Provide for a Service Charge in Lieu of Taxes for 

Dwelling Units for Low Income Persons and Families (Lighthouse Ridge Apartments) entitled 

“Termination” is hereby removed in its entirety.  

 

Section 2. Severability. 

 

The various sections and provisions of this Ordinance shall be deemed to be 

severable, and should any section or provision of this Ordinance be declared by any court of 

competent jurisdiction to be unconstitutional or invalid, the same shall not affect the validity of 

the Ordinance as a whole or any section or provision of this Ordinance other than the section or 

provision so declared to be unconstitutional or invalid. 

 

 Section 3. Inconsistent Ordinances. 

 

 All other ordinances inconsistent with the provisions of this Ordinance are hereby 

repealed only to the extent necessary to give this Ordinance full force and effect. 

 

 Section 4. Effective Date  

 

 This Ordinance shall take effect immediately after publication. 

 

  

Township Clerk 

 

Dated:  _____________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



EXHIBIT B 

 

 

 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF SOUTH HAVEN 

 

NOTICE OF ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE NO. 170 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE TO PROVIDE FOR  

A SERVICE CHARGE IN LIEU OF TAXES FOR DWELLING UNITS 

FOR LOW INCOME PERSONS OR FAMILIES (LIGHTHOUSE RIDGE 

APARTMENTS) 

 

 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that at its meeting October 8, 2025, the Township Board adopted 

Ordinance No. __ “An Ordinance to Amend Ordinance to Provide For A Service Charge In Lieu 

of Taxes for Dwelling Units for Low Income Persons and Families (Lighthouse Ridge 

Apartments).” The following is a summary of the Ordinance. A true copy of the Ordinance is 

available for inspection or purchase at the office of the Township Clerk, 09761 Blue Star 

Memorial Hwy, South Haven, MI 49090, or online at http://www.southhaventwp.com. The 

Ordinance takes effect upon publication. 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 170 

ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE TO PROVIDE FOR A SERVICE CHARGE IN 

LIEU OF TAXES FOR DWELLING UNITS FOR LOW INCOME PERSONS AND 

FAMILIES 

(LIGHTHOUSE RIDGE APARTMENTS)  

  

Section 1 removes Section 9 of the Ordinance in its entirety. 
 

Section 2 makes the Ordinance’s provisions severable. 

 

Section 3 repeals all ordinances or parts of ordinances to the extent necessary to give the 

Ordinance full force and effect. 

 

Section 4 states the Ordinance takes effect once published. 
 

 

 Brenda Bertorelli, Clerk 

 South Haven Township Hall 

 09761 Blue Star Memorial Hwy 

 South Haven, MI 49090 

 (269) 637-3305 

 
 







 

 

            SOUTH HAVEN AREA REGIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY MINUTES 

 

SEPTEMBER 17, 2025 

 

Pursuant to Act 267 of 1976, as amended (Open Meetings Act), the Board Members of the 

South Haven Area Regional Airport Authority (SHARAA) met at the South Haven Area 

Regional Airport, 73020 C.R. 380, South Haven, Michigan on Wednesday, September 17, 

2025. 

 

  _Jon Woodhams_ Called a regular meeting of the South Haven Area Regional Airport 

Authority Board to order at 7:30 pm. 

 
BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:  

Jon Woodhams, Geneva Township, Chairman 

Brent Nichols-City of South Haven, Vice Chairman 

                                 Mary Hosley, City of South Haven 

                                 Todd Jensen, South Haven Township 

          Mike Gillian, Covert Township 

          Jim Sankofski, Casco Township 

          Ross Woodhams, alternate for City of South Haven 

  
BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT: 

            Fred Bower, alternate for Covert Township 

                                  Julian Allen, Covert Township 

 

I. Agenda: __Mary Hosley_ motioned to approve the agenda for the September 17, 2025, Airport 

Board meeting. __Todd Jensen_ seconded this motion. All voted in favor. The motion to approve 

the agenda carries. YEA   6__ / NA _0_       

 

II.          Public Comments:    
 

Mrs. Goldner inquired whether the trees on her property would be trimmed or completely 

removed as part of the upcoming obstruction removal project. The Board directed her to 

consult with consulting engineer Mead & Hunt regarding this matter.  

 

Mrs. Goldner inquired whether the airport’s water supply was affected by a recent boil 

water advisory, which she brought to the Board’s attention. It was noted that the airport is 

served by private wells.  
 
 

          __Mary Hosley_ motioned to approve the consent agenda, and _Brent Nichols_    

            seconded this motion: 

Consent Agenda:  
Expenses from: 

▪ JULY 2025 Totaling: $49,076.30 

 

▪ Manager’s report dated: September 17, 2025 



 

 

             Julian Allen, Covert Township 

Jim Sankofski, Casco Township 

Fred Bower, Covert Township 

Nancy Kelley, Treasurer 

Dan Sanborn, Secretary 

 

 

▪ Minutes of  August 20, 2025 

 

 

A roll call vote to approve the consent agenda was taken and all voted in favor. The motion carries.  

YEA  6__ / NA  0_ 

 

III.     Committee Reports: NONE 
 

IV.    Old Business:   

 

 

Todd Jensen made a motion to approve the herbicide application quote for wooded species in 

clear-cut areas by Total Land Care, LLC for the amount of $3,348.00. Brent Nichols seconded 

this motion. A roll call vote was taken and all voted in favor. The motion carries.  YEA  6__ / 

NA  0_ 

 

Due to the passage of time since the original execution, the contract and bonds for Runway 23 

Approach Clearing Phase 1 at South Haven Area Regional Airport required re-execution. Mary 

Hosley made a motion to authorize re-signing of the agreement. Mike Gillian seconded this 

motion. A roll call vote was taken and all voted in favor. The motion carries.  YEA  6__ / NA  

0_ 

  

V. New Business:  

 

Resolution 2025-2, authorizing Chairman Woodhams and Vice-Chairman Nichols to sign all 

contracts and proceedings pertaining to the Runway 23 Obstruction Removal Project was 

presented. A motion to adopt the resolution was made by Brent Nichols and seconded by Mary 

Hosley. The motion carried unanimously, and Resolution 2025-2 is declared adopted.  

 

 

IV. Member Comments: Mike Gillian noted that an FBO in Aurora, Illinois had recently gone out 

of business and reported that possibly up to 12 fuel trucks could be on the market as a result. 

Airport Management will inquire.  

 

 

 _Brent Nichols__ moved to adjourn the meeting ___Mary Hosley_ seconded this motion. The 

meeting was adjourned at: _7:55pm _ 

 

SOUTH HAVEN AREA REGIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY 
 

Jonathon Woodhams, Chairman 

Brent Nichols, City of South Haven, Vice Chair 

Todd Jensen, South Haven Township 

Mary Hosley, City of South Haven 

Ross Woodhams, alternate for City of South Haven 

Mike Gillian, alternate for Covert Township 














	October Agenda
	Sep 2025 Minutes
	Resolution 25-26 Introducing Ord 171
	Resolution Formally Approving 2001 Annexation Rev'd 10.06.25(202017771.2) (1)
	Ex 1 - Res to Approve 2001 Annexation(202017776.1)
	Resolution 25-28 to Adopt PILOT Amendment Ord 170 (Lighthouse)(202019515.1)
	Snow Removal Bids
	9 SEP 2025 Authority Meeting Minutes
	MTS Report
	Planning Commission Minutes September 2025
	Treasurer's Report



